
 

Scrutiny Sub-Committee B 
 

Tuesday October 13 2009 
7.00 pm 

Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB 
 
 

Membership 
 

Reserves 
 

Councillor Richard Thomas (Chair) 
Councillor Tayo Situ (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Columba Blango 
Councillor Mark Glover 
Councillor David Hubber 
Councillor Jenny Jones 
Councillor Andrew Pakes 
 

Councillor Anood Al-Samerai 
Councillor Helen Jardine-Brown 
Councillor Evrim Laws 
Councillor Ian Wingfield 
 

 
 
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 
Access to information 

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as 
well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports. 

Babysitting/Carers allowances 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an 
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, 
you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the meeting. 

Access 

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building 
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below. 
Contact:  
Sally Masson on 020 7525 7224  or email: sally.masson@southwark.gov.uk    
 
 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Annie Shepperd 
Chief Executive 
Date: October 5 2009 
 

 
 

Open Agenda



 

Scrutiny Sub-Committee B 
 

Tuesday October 13 2009 
7.00 pm 

Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB 
 
 

Order of Business 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 

 PART A - OPEN BUSINESS 
 

 

1. APOLOGIES 
 

 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
DEEMS URGENT 

 

 

 In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an agenda 
within five clear working days of the meeting. 
 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 Members to declare any personal interests and dispensation in respect of 
any item of business to be considered at this meeting. 
 

 

4. MINUTES 
 

1 - 7 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the open section of the 
meeting held on September 1 2009. 
 

 

 DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER OPEN ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE 
START OF THE MEETING. 
 

 

 PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS 
 

 

 DISCUSSION OF ANY OTHER CLOSED ITEMS AS NOTIFIED AT THE 
START OF THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS 
URGENT. 
 

 

5. TENDER FOR CATERING SERVICES AT TOOLEY STREET 
 

 

 Councillor Tim McNally, Executive Member for Resources, will provide a 
brief update on the progress of the tendering process for the new catering 
service at Tooley Street. 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

6. EXECUTIVE MEMBER QUESTION TIME 
 

8 

 Interview with the Executive Member for Housing: Councillor Kim 
Humphreys. 
 

 

7. INFORMING THE SOUTHWARK FOOD STRATEGY. 
 

9 - 16 

 Concluding the review into what Southwark should be including in its food 
strategy.   
 
Draft Report. 
 

 

8. MORE POWERS FOR COMMUNITY COUNCILS 
 

 

 Scoping the next scrutiny review. 
 
Formulating the next wave of devolution of decision making:  
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

 
Date:  October 5 2009 
 



1 
 
 

Scrutiny Sub-Committee B - Wednesday September 2 2009 
 

 
 
 
 

SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE B 
 
MINUTES of the Scrutiny Sub-Committee B held on Wednesday September 2 2009 at 
7.00 pm at Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB  
 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Richard Thomas (Chair) 

Councillor Tayo Situ 
Councillor Columba Blango 
Councillor David Hubber 
Councillor Jenny Jones 
 

OFFICER 
SUPPORT: 

Ben Reynolds, Sustain 
Stuart Robinson-Marshall, Head of Director's Office, 
Environment & Housing 
Sally Masson, Scrutiny Project Manager 
 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES 
 

 

 1.1 There were none. 
 

 

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
DEEMS URGENT 

 

 

 2.1 There were none. 
 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 3.1 There were none. 
 

 

4. MINUTES 
 

 

 RESOLVED: That the minutes of the open section of the meeting held on 
July 1 2009 be approved as an acurate record. 
 

 

Agenda Item 4
1



2 
 
 

Scrutiny Sub-Committee B - Wednesday September 2 2009 
 

5. SOUTHWARK FOOD STRATEGY 
 

 

 5.1 The sub-committee clarified the seven areas they wanted to see 
used as a framework for a Southwark food strategy: 

 
5.2 Ensuring commercial vibrancy  

Securing consumer engagement 
Levering the power of procurement 
Developing regional links  
Delivering healthy schools 
Reducing food related waste and litter 
Using allotments and other Council land 

 
5.3 It was felt that more engagement needed to take place with local 

supermarkets, to attempt to obtain their ‘buy in’ to a strategy. 
 
5.4 Ben Reynolds from ‘Sustain’ which is part of the London Food 

Link, ran through a few things that Southwark may want to 
consider in their food strategy. 

 
5.5 It was reported to the committee that around half of London 

boroughs had been considering a food strategy.  Camden was 
considered to have a good model.  They had formed alliances with 
relevant partners such as the PCT, RSPB and National Trust.  
They also used representatives from businesses and the local 
community who were consulted through a number of events.  

 
5.6 Camden Council and Camden PCT had a very strong relationship 

which meant that there was good cross partnership working and 
ensured that the strategy was specific to Camden.  Using a 
steering group, Camden had brought about consensus in the 
borough. Members were keen that Southwark followed suit, 
devising a strategy that was going to be specific to the boroughs 
needs.   

 
5.7 It was also suggested that Southwark might identify a willing 

champion, who – paid or unpaid – would take an active interest in 
promoting the strategy.  Councillor Jenny Jones thought that if 
Southwark were to select a champion it would be a post best 
served by a Councillor, rather than a community, business 
representative or Council officer.  This could mitigate the possibility 
of the position being foisted onto someone who may feel their 
priorities lay elsewhere.   

 
5.8 It was good to keep in mind that the partnership and the strategy 

were a means to an end and that it was important to identify the 
quick wins, to keep things interesting, as well as working towards 
the longer term aims. 

 
5.9 It was emphasised that the Council itself should be leading the 

 

2



3 
 
 

Scrutiny Sub-Committee B - Wednesday September 2 2009 
 

way, setting an example to the rest of the community by ensuring 
that its own food practices were in sync with good practice.  For 
example, catering for meetings should default to vegetarian 
selections which have less carbon emissions associated with 
production.  The Council should not use ‘red’ list fish, (fish that is in 
danger of extinction) and provide good information about food and 
its production to businesses and the community to help individuals 
make an informed choice about what to buy and eat.  This sort of 
activity was thought to be one of the cheaper exercises the Council 
could implement. 

 
5.10 Providing free school meals would ensure that all children get at 

least one nutritious meal per day but it was acknowledged that this 
would be expensive. 

 
5.11 Members wanted to know at what stage the tendering process was 

now at for the catering service proposed for the canteen at Tooley 
Street.  Members wanted to know what ecological, environmental 
and ethical criteria were being considered to select the new service 
provider.   

 
5.12 Cllr Tim McNally and senior officers are to be invited to committee 

to inform Members of the current tendering situation.   
 
5.13 There was some debate as to which department the strategy 

should sit in.  Suggestions included the Chief Executive’s office, 
sustainability or an environment team.   

 
5.14 Councillor Columba Blango asked how the committee intended to 

address the issues of diversity through the strategy.   He said that 
African and Asian food tended to be imported with considerable 
costs both financially and environmentally. However, many 
countries depended on trading with the UK.   

 
5.15 Councillor Jones stated that importing crops meant depriving those 

countries of water and that it was the multi national companies that 
were reaping large profits at the expense of local economies and 
the growers themselves. 

 
5.16 Cllrs Blango and Situ to seek a community representative to inform 

the committee further. 
 
5.17 Dr Ann Marie Connolly spoke about how the strategy needed to be 

embedded within the two organisations, both the Council and the 
PCT.  It was important that a strategy was specific to Southwark. 
For example, Southwark has the highest population of child obesity 
than in any other part of the country.  That 26% of children are 
obese by year 6, 14.3% by reception year and 95% of children 
overall.  Overweight children can be more at risk of cancer, 
diabetes, heart disease and arthritic problems in later life.  It is part 
of Southwark’s LAA targets to reduce levels of obesity and the 

3



4 
 
 

Scrutiny Sub-Committee B - Wednesday September 2 2009 
 

PCT have devised an action plan and strategy - the Southwark 
Healthy Weight Strategy; this document covers four strands: 

 
1 Early intervention and prevention 
2 Shifting the curve of overweight 
3 Targeting those at risk of an unhealthy weight 
4 Effective treatments of anorexia, obesity and other weight 

disorders. 
 
5.18 In early years parents need help making the transition from breast 

feeding on to a healthy diet taking into consideration other 
determinants such as; play, environment and exercise.  It is also 
important to consider how parents access and cook food and 
making parents aware of what is a normal weight and helping 
families to help each other.  From studies recently it is believed 
that a quarter of 14 – 17 year olds miss breakfast altogether. 

 
5.19 It was debated as to whether it would be a good idea to bring all 

schools meals under local government control.  However, in 
Southwark, unlike other boroughs, there is no one single contractor 
and schools run the school meals service independently.  It is 
therefore very hard to measure and monitor what is going on.  The 
Director of Public Health made the point that if there were to be a 
centralised decision making body for the procurement of services, 
it would enable better concensus and affordable contracts which 
were better value for money.  Southwark needed to get more of a 
picture of what is going on in its schools. 

 
5.20 In Barking and Dagenham and Waltham Forest the food strategy 

had direct influence in planning where and where not to put fast 
food restaurants.  They were not allowed to open within 400 
meters of a school.  The committee thought that this was a very 
constructive way forward however, it was recognised that although 
opening a restaurant could be prevented, it was not possible to 
close an open establishment down, making the reduction in 
restaurants slow progress. 

 
5.21 Young people are encouraged to join breakfast clubs, although 

they are not available everywhere and there is a general concern 
that vending machines in schools should not be selling fizzy drinks.  
It is believed that children get through on average 3 – 4 fizzy drinks 
per day.  These drinks are high in calories and have little nutritional 
benefit.  Again, the products sold in the Council’s buildings, such 
as Tooley St, should be reviewed. 

 
5.22 It was thought that any progress with a food strategy should link up 

with the healthy weight strategy developed by the PCT and won a 
shared message to the community laying down better patterns and 
modelling good practice and willingness to change across the PCT 
and the Council.  It is very important that the Council and leading 
agencies are at the forefront of change if change is expected in our 

4



5 
 
 

Scrutiny Sub-Committee B - Wednesday September 2 2009 
 

communities. 
 
5.23 Members discussed that food in hospitals had to improve and 

currently there seem to be very unhealthy options especially in 
areas such as outpatients. 

 
5.24 Dr. Ann Marie Connolly went through the departments where she 

thought the strategy might sit: 
 

Environment 
Planning and regeneration 
Policy  
Children’s Services 
Trading standards 

 
5.25 It was agreed that Southwark would need to ensure buy-in from 

the voluntary sector and other groups.  That there was a need to 
facilitate strong communication and what resources do we have to 
assist with that.   

 
5.26 It was felt that there is a strong indication that there is a link 

between nutrition and attention and attainment 
 
5.27 Councillor Blango made the point that for many children 

encouragement to do more exercise is not forthcoming.  That the 
strategy might want to outline that there are foods which can aid 
exercise and performance. 

 
5.28 It was frustrating that it seemed that often advice tends to change 

and that people tended to get confused over the constantly 
changing and sometimes conflicting advice given. 

 
5.29 The Director of Public Health said that those people who tend to 

follow advice already tend to have a very healthy diet with a good 
mix and balance of nutrition.  They also tend to be open to being 
kept informed of current/changing ways of thinking. 

 
5.30 For those that are on a tight budget, things can be very tough.  The 

culture of our society nowadays is full of marketing and product 
placements push forward the more unhealthy options.  Often, 
foods with low nutritional value is cheaper, more filling and 
comforting, making those types of foods more desirable to young 
people and adults alike.   

 
5.31 Ann Marie Connolly said that she would be happy to be the lead 

for the PCT for strategy development work.   
 
5.32 Ben Reynolds from Sustain said that although food promotion of 

this kind tended to be the case in many areas, there were things 
that we could do to improve the situation.  He suggested that 
Southwark might be able to influence small retailers to stock more 

5



6 
 
 

Scrutiny Sub-Committee B - Wednesday September 2 2009 
 

healthy options for instance. 
 
5.33 Councillor Jenny Jones said that it was important to take into 

consideration the safety aspect of crop production.  That crops 
were starting to fail and as a result food prices would be rising.  It 
was therefore very important to start looking at local food 
production, protecting local areas and involving planning in relation 
to land use.   

 
5.34 There were currently tracts of green spaces on housing estates 

and it was anecdotally reported that in other countries, land such 
as this had been used ostensibly for food production with some 
success.   

 
5.35 Councillor Jones also reported to the committee that if everyone 

were to become vegan – we would meet our carbon emissions 
targets by 10% by 2010 

 
5.36 It was reported that other boroughs within London were now 

looking at their empty spaces, within housing estates and council 
land, including local business’ and community groups.  Doctor’s 
surgeries were also promoting schemes to involve the local 
community in food production and scoring systems have been 
devised which measure the sustainability of local food production 
with gardens cultivated on top of buildings scoring highly.    

 
5.37 Members were clear that they wanted to inform the food strategy 

before any food policy took shape. 
 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1   Cllr Tim McNally and officers are to be 
invited to committee to inform Members 
of the current tendering situation.   

 
2 Cllrs Blango and Situ to seek a 
community representative to inform the 
committee further. 

 
 

6. EXECUTIVE MEMBER QUESTIONS 
 

 

 6.1 The committee agreed to ask Councillor Kim Humphries questions 
around the following areas: 

 
Social housing 
Decent homes 
Analysis of the new building service - home search 
Common lettings policy 

 

6



7 
 
 

Scrutiny Sub-Committee B - Wednesday September 2 2009 
 

Leaseholder’s charges 
Management of open spaces on Council land 
And an update on Lakanal House - depending on updates 
elsewhere. 

 
 

  
 
 CHAIR:  
 
 
 DATED:  
 
 

 
 

7



 
 
Questions for the Executive Member for Housing 
Scrutiny Sub-Committee B – 13th October 2009 
 
 
 
(1) What assessment has he made of the opportunity for creative use of open 
spaces on council estates? For example: Open space related activates such 
as community gardens, orchard planting, allotments etc.  
 
(2) What is his response to the recent review of leaseholder services? (The 
Chair declares an interest as a leaseholder) 
 
(3) Does the council aspire to meet the decent homes standard?  
 
(4) Does he place a higher priority on security measures and insulation 
measures on estates rather than other elements of decent homes?  
 
(5) Does he believe that selling street properties is an appropriate way of 
raising money for the decent homes programme?  
 
(6) How many direct offers of housing and how many offers are made through 
home search for the last three years, could we have the percentage and 
actual figures please?  
 
(7) Can he set out the programme of insulation on C.H.P and council estates?  
 
(8) (From Scrutiny Sub Committee C) For a considerable period of time you 
were engaged in auditing community halls in the borough.  What is the current 
position on that? 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6
8



 

 
 

Informing the Southwark Food Strategy 
 
 

Scrutiny Sub-Committee B 
 
 
 

September 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 7
9



 2 

 
Contents         Page 
 
 
Introduction    
 
Southwark Innovation 
 
Benchmarking 
 
The Council as a Lead 
 
Food Diversity 
 
The Future of Health in Southwark - Findings 
 
Accountable Schools 
 
The Strategy and its Influence on Planning Decisions 
 
The way forward:  

Bees 
Borough Market 
Utilisation of Council Land 
Waste  

 
Conclusion 
 
Recommendations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



 3 

1 Introduction 
 
In July 2009 scrutiny sub-committee B decided to look at what progress had 
been made toward the development of a food strategy for Southwark.  The 
committee agreed that the purpose of the review was to make 
recommendations to the executive and senior officers to assist them in the 
development of the work.  Evidence was gathered from a variety of sources 
including local markets and organisations such as the London Bee Keepers 
Association.  Council officers and outside food agencies were also consulted 
on how they thought Southwark might develop a meaningful strategy, specific 
to the borough’s needs.        
 
The committee felt the main reason for commencing with a review of this 
nature was to highlight that affordable, healthy food should be available to all 
people, including the poorer communities within the borough.  Some Members 
felt that often, it seemed that access to healthy food could be difficult in 
certain areas, with fresh fruit and vegetable shops located some way away 
from the homes of poorer families; families who may find themselves having 
to pay extra, drawing on already stretched budgets to travel to shops that sell 
healthy food.   
 
The committee sought to understand what the Council intended to do with 
vacant allotments, undeveloped land and market gardens and whether these 
areas might be used to grow produce.  Members also wanted to understand 
what kind of role the planning department might play in future regarding land 
allocation and the granting of licences for fast food restaurants.  It was 
thought that independent food shops could play a more significant role in 
promoting healthy choices by increasing stocks of organic and fair trade 
produce and it was felt that Southwark must start to look at local food 
production possibilities, putting local food first whilst understanding the 
implications with food brought in from overseas; what are the economic and 
ethical considerations to the country of origin and what impact the imports 
may be having on local food supply.  It was important to understand the 
quality and quantity of both local and overseas production and what kinds of 
supplies are needed for Southwark.  It was felt that a strategy may also detail 
how to promote organic produce; linking it with seasonal production; the 
planting of fruit trees and the possibilities of utilising public space for these 
initiatives. 
 
3 Southwark Innovation 
 
The London Mayors Food Strategy states that ‘farmers, factories, restaurants 
and retailers ensure that, every single day, millions of people in London are 
able to choose from an unprecedented variety of food and drink.  But this 
complex system has its failings, from negative impacts upon heath and to 
environmental damage caused by CO2 emissions’.  Southwark’s food 
strategy must consider how we reduce our CO2 emissions across all of our 
services.  We must consider how we can make our meals on wheels and 
school meals services more environmentally sustainable as well as increasing 
the nutritional value.  As a borough we must also ask, what more can be done 

11



 4 

to better utilise the space on our housing estates and other public, council 
owned spaces and to use more informed and innovative planning decisions, 
making better use of its land.  This may include land swaps and the utilisation 
of rooftops for agricultural use.  
 
The committee felt that a Southwark food strategy should encompass seven 
strands of work:   
 
1 Ensuring commercial vibrancy  
2 Securing consumer engagement 
3 Levering the power of procurement 
4 Developing regional links  
5 Delivering healthy schools 
6 Reducing food related waste and litter 
7 Using allotments and other Council land 
 
Benchmarking 
 
Ben Reynolds from ‘Sustain’ part of the London Food Link came to the 
committee in July to run through his experience of food strategy development. 
He informed the committee that approximately half of London boroughs now 
had a food strategy and out of those boroughs he felt that Camden had a 
particularly good model to learn from.  Camden had formed strong working 
alliances with as many relevant groups as they found necessary.  These 
partners included the PCT, RSPB and the National Trust.  They also called 
upon representatives from local businesses and the community to contribute 
to the work by taking part in consultations over a series of relevant issues.  
Camden Council and Camden PCT formed a steering group which ensured 
that the strategy was specific to Camden and its communities.  The steering 
group also helped to bring about consensus from the partnerships and this 
acted to engender a sense of ownership across all of the working group 
participants.   
 
Members were keen that Southwark also devised a strategy that was going to 
be specific to the needs of the borough.  It might be that Southwark identifies 
a willing champion to take the work forward, understanding the importance of 
partnership working.  It might be someone who already had an interest in the 
development of the work, who might be paid or unpaid but be adept at 
promoting the strategy, able to identify the ‘quick wins’ to keep things 
interesting as well as working towards longer term objectives. 
 
The Council as a Lead 
 
It is important that the Council in devising a food strategy, showed leadership 
in its implementation.  Using sustainable, ethically sourced and healthy food 
should become part of the culture of the council, making it standard practice in 
the working environment and across all relevant sites.    For example, catering 
for meetings should default to being vegetarian.  Vegetarian options tend to 
be healthier as well as generating less carbon emissions.  The Council should 
not use ‘red’ list fish, (fish that is in danger of extinction) and should provide 

12



 5 

detailed, accurate and up to date information about the food on offer and how 
it is produced.  This information should be widely available across the 
borough, encouraging local businesses and the community to make informed 
choices about what to buy and what to eat.  It was thought that providing good 
information about the food available in the borough would be a relatively low 
cost initiative and could act as a firm initial step on which to start building the 
momentum for the implementation of other aspects of the strategy. 
 
The committee were aware that the catering service for the Tooley St building 
had not yet been commissioned and Members wanted to know at what stage 
the tendering process was now at.  More specifically, they wanted to know 
what the selection criteria had been and whether and in what way ecological, 
environmental and ethical considerations had informed the process.  
 
The vending machines at Tooley St mainly stocked unhealthy snacks and 
drinks and it was thought that these machines should be reviewed.......[could 
we propose an alternative/s?] It was not understood why so many vending 
machines had been installed, stocking high calorie options that contained very 
little nutritional value. 
 
[More evidence from Cllr Tim McNally, Stephen Platts, other officers. 
 
 
Food Diversity 
 
Councillor Columba Blango wondered how work on the strategy might 
address issues of diversity within the strategy.   African and Asian food tended 
to be imported but the process of importing came with considerable costs both 
financially and environmentally.  The extent to which countries depended on 
trading with the UK were not fully known, however, it was generally thought 
that making demands on countries to grow food for importing to the UK, 
meant that the cultivation of those crops depleted the country’s water 
reserves.  It was felt that by and large it was the multi national companies 
promoting the growth and export of food who were reaping large profits at the 
expense of local economies, the growers themselves and the health of their 
own food supply. 
 
[ More evidence to come ] Cllrs Blango and Situ to seek a community 
representative to inform the committee further. 
 
 
The Future of Health in Southwark - Findings 
 
Dr Ann Marie Connolly, director of public health also came to the committee in 
July and spoke about how the strategy needed to be embedded within the 
Council and the PCT.  She also spoke about how important it was that the 
strategy was specific to Southwark. For example, Southwark has the highest 
population of child obesity than in any other part of the country. 26% of 
children are obese by year 6; 14.3% by reception year and 95% of children 
overall.  Overweight children can be more at risk of cancer, diabetes, heart 

13



 6 

disease and arthritic problems in later life.  It is part of Southwark’s LAA 
targets to reduce levels of obesity and Southwark must do more to address 
this situation.  The PCT have devised an action plan and strategy - the 
Southwark Healthy Weight Strategy - which covers four strands:  
 
1 Early intervention and prevention 
2 Shifting the curve of overweight 
3 Targeting those at risk of an unhealthy weight 
4 Effective treatments of anorexia, obesity and other weight disorders. 
 
In the early years many parents need help to make the transition from breast 
feeding their babies to a healthy more solid diet.  Moves to lend such 
assistance to parents must take into consideration other determinants such 
as; play, environment and exercise.  It is also important to consider how 
parents access and cook food, making them aware of the normal weight 
ranges for children.  It was an important factor that parents felt they had 
support and the Council, PCT and other agencies needed to help families to 
help each other.   
 
From recent studies it was believed that a quarter of 14 – 17 year olds miss 
breakfast completely.  This is despite findings suggesting that there is a 
strong link between nutrition, attention and attainment 
 
The Southwark food strategy should link up with the healthy weight strategy 
developed by the PCT, providing a shared message to the community.  The 
messages should endeavour to help lay down better patterns of eating and 
attitudes towards food.  The modelling of good practice and willingness to 
change is essential across the PCT and the Council if we are to be at the 
forefront of change, setting an example to our communities. 
 
For families that are on a very tight budget, finding and affording healthy food 
can be very difficult.  The culture of our society seems to be tied in to 
extensive marketing; product placements push forward the more unhealthy, 
options.  Often, foods with low nutritional value is cheaper, more filling and 
comforting, making them more desirable to young people and adults alike.   
 
 
Accountable Schools  
 
The committee questioned whether it would be a good idea to bring all 
schools meals under local government control.  In Southwark, unlike other 
boroughs, there isn’t a single contractor and it is left to the schools 
themselves to commission school meals services independently.  It is 
therefore, very hard for Southwark to measure and monitor what is going on.  
The Director of Public Health made the point that if there were to be a 
centralised decision making body for the procurement of school meal 
services, it would enable better concensus amongst concerned agencies 
which would, in turn, enable the establishment of  contracts which offered 
better quality food and value for money.  To correctly assess the situation, 

14



 7 

Southwark would need to get a better picture of precisely what is going on in 
its schools. [REC?] 
 
There were positive initiatives being taken to encourage young people to eat 
better by joining breakfast clubs.  It was reported to the committee that these 
clubs were not always very widely available.  There was also significant 
concern that vending machines in schools were selling fizzy, high sugar drinks 
and according to PCT reports, children were getting through on average 3 – 4 
fizzy drinks per day.   
 
The committee heard that providing free school meals would ensure that all 
children get at least one nutritious meal per day.  However, it was realised 
that the expense of providing such a service for all schools would be 
extremely high. [REC?] 
 
 
The strategy and its influence on planning decisions 
 
Food strategies devised by Barking and Dagenham and Waltham Forest have 
directly influenced their respective planning departments.  Both departments 
exercise more discernment regarding where and where not to put fast food 
restaurants.  Restaurants have not been granted permissions to open within 
400 meters of any school.  This was viewed by the committee as a very 
positive step in the right direction and hoped that Southwark would follow suit. 
[REC?]  
 
 
Bees 
 
The committee heard from the London Bee Keepers Association (LBKA) who 
felt that Southwark could be doing more to assist them in finding new places 
to set up Aviaries.  The aviaries need very little space and both the bees and 
the sites are not resource heavy.  The LBKA offered their services, free of 
charge, to Southwark and anyone else who wanted to set up sites and help 
increase the dwindling bee population by keeping bees themselves.     
 
The LBKA said that they were very willing provide advice and guidance to 
Southwark to help cultivate more sites for the borough and its community. 
[REC?] 
  
 
Borough Market [next meeting] 
 
Utilisation of Spare Council Land [next meeting] 
 
Waste Disposal [next meeting] 
 
Conclusion 
 

15



 8 

The strategy could sit in one of a number of areas including the Chief 
Executive’s office, sustainability or an environment team, planning and 
regeneration, policy, children’s services or trading standards.  The important 
thing however is that the work is taken forward with commitment and drive.   
 
Also during the course of the review, the committee touched briefly on 
subjects such as: 
 

• The importance of engagement with Supermarkets with a view to 
improving the quality and sustainability of food stocked.   

 
• Southwark would need to ensure buy-in from the voluntary sector and 
other relevant groups by investing in the resources to support strong 
communication mechanisms.   

 
• Southwark needed to do more to encourage children to exercise, and 
the strategy might want to outline that there are foods which can aid 
and enhance exercise and performance by way of ‘selling’ the healthy 
food idea to young people. 

 
• It was strongly felt that food in hospitals had to improve considerably 
both on the wards and in more public areas such as the outpatients 
department, where food options can be limited to cakes, biscuits, 
chocolate bars and fizzy drinks. 

 
[to be completed after further evidence] 
 
 
Recommendations  
 
[Committee to agree what the wording of the recommendations will be]. 

16



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally blank. 



 

 
DISTRIBUTION LIST MUNICIPAL YEAR 2009/10 
 
COMMITTEE: SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE B 
 
NOTE:  Please notify amendments to Scrutiny Team (0207 525 7102) 
 
 

OPEN COPIES OPEN COPIES 

 
MEMBERS/RESERVES 
 
Councillor Richard Thomas (Chair) 1 
Councillor Tayo Situ (Vice-Chair) 1 
Councillor Columba Blango 1 
Councillor Mark Glover 1 
Councillor David Hubber 1 
Councillor Jenny Jones 1 
Councillor Andrew Pakes 1 
 
Councillor Anood Al-Samerai [Reserve] 1 
Councillor Helen Jardine-Brown [Reserve] 1 
Councillor Evrim Laws [Reserve] 1 
Councillor Ian Wingfield [Reserve] 1 
 
OTHER MEMBERS 

 
Councillor Fiona Colley 1 
Councillor Tim McNally                                                   1 
 
 
DEPARTMENTAL OFFICERS 
  
Charles Mabussi, Cleaner, Greener Safer 1 
Steve Platts, Development and Regeneration Manager1 
Jeremy Pilgrim, Property Development Manager 1 
Maurice Soden, Regeneration Initiatives Manager, 
Regeneration and Neighbourhoods 1 
Aine McDonagh, Conservation Team 1 
Michael Carnuccio, Principal Planning Officer               1 
 

 
Libraries 3 
Local Studies Library 1 
Press 2 
 
Scrutiny Team SPARES 10 
 
Debbi Gooch, Legal Services 1 
Shelley Burke, Head of Overview & Scrutiny 1 
John Bibby, Labour Political Assistant 1 
Dan Falchikov, Lib Dem Political Assistant                    1 
 
TRADE UNIONS 
 
Roy Fielding, GMB/APEX 1 
Mick Young, TGWU/ACTS 1 
Euan Cameron, Unison 1 
 
 
TOTAL HARD COPY DISTRIBUTION                        44 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

HARD COPIES OF THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE ON REQUEST FROM THE SCRUTINY TEAM Tel: 0207 525 7102 
 
 
 


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Executive Member Question Time
	7 Informing the Southwark Food Strategy.
	
	

